
From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: RE: East Marsh
Date: 23 October 2013 13:10:20
Attachments: East Marsh Hand Back.doc

 
Thank you for producing the notes.
 
The only additional elements were the following:
 
- The final point should refer to the provision of sockets and goal posts by LLDC (not corner flags)
 
- We agreed that Hackney would own the Heras fencing after removal
 
- I think we need a more explicit action regarding the retention. It was agreed that this would be 5% and
relate to issues around settlement / subsidence, not general maintenance. This needs to be encompassed in
the legal process
 
Regards
 

-----Original Message-----
From: @londonlegacy.co.uk] 
Sent: 22 October 2013 09:08
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: East Marsh

All,
Please find a note of the meeting yesterday.
 
 

 

London Legacy Development Corporation
South Plaza,
Marshgate Lane,
Stratford,
London
E15 2NH

 

@londonlegacy.co.uk  
Web: www.londonlegacy.co.uk
 
**Please note: We have moved offices and are now located at 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet
Road, E20 1EJ.
 

On the 1st April 2012, the Olympic Park Legacy Company’s staff and assets were transferred to
the London Legacy Development Corporation.
The Development Corporation takes over all of the Legacy Company’s projects and programmes,
and business will continue as normal.
 



ü Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail or its attachments

 

This communication and the information it contains is intended for the addressee
only. It may be confidential, legally privileged and protected by law. Unauthorised
use, copying or disclosure of any of it may be unlawful. If you have received this
communication in error, please contact me immediately by email or telephone and
then delete the e-mail and its attachments from your system. This email and any
attachments have been scanned for viruses by Symantec and on leaving the London
Legacy Development Corporation they were virus free. No liability will be incurred
for direct, special or indirect or consequential damages arising from alteration of the
contents of this message by a third party or as a result of any virus contained
within it or attached to it. The London Legacy Development Corporation may
monitor traffic data. For enquiries please call 020 3288 1800. 
London Legacy Development Corporation, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet
Road, Olympic Park, London, E20 1EJ. 

www.londonlegacy.co.uk. 
______________________________________________________________________

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com
______________________________________________________________________

Hackney Council may exercise its right to intercept any communication, the only exception to this would be confidential survey
data, with any employee or agent of the Council using its telephony or data networks. 
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Advisory Report on the: 

 
Site Works at Hackney East Marsh  

 
Date of visit: 

 
Thursday 29 August 2013  

 
Present: 

 Sports Turf Consulting Ltd) 
representing Hackney Council 

 
Object of Visit: 

To undertake a late August visit as requested and ascertain further 
establishment of the sward since our previous visit.   

Highlight any recommendations regarding maintenance required. 
 
 
1.0 SITE NOTES 
 

• Grass cover – viewed from the grandstand area revealed the site to have virtually full 
grass cover except for a number of localised areas around manhole covers.  These 
were off the pitch areas and therefore not of undue concern. 

Examining the surface at ground level found grass cover to be 100% throughout the 
pitch areas, although density is still slightly under developed at the current time.  The 
grass was approximately 75-110mm (3-4½") in length at the time of our visit.  The 
grass had good vigour and colour indicating that it was growing rapidly.  Later 
discussions with maintenance staff confirmed this to be the case. 

• Weaker areas within the site – these were generally few and far between but it was 
noted that the seed drill lines were much more observable on the first pitches that 
were seeded rather than the later ones.  This may be due to any number of factors, but 
is worth bearing in mind.  The areas at the far end of the site also appear to be slightly 
hungrier than the areas in the middle of the site, which appeared almost over-lush.  
A few small bare areas were noted within this far end zone of weaker grass 
establishment and we were very pleased to see that overseeding work had been 
completed already and grass seed germination was beginning to occur in these areas.  
Some further work may be required in some of these as the germination seems to be a 
little patchy at the current time. 
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Example of the best grass cover. 

 

Example of the weakest grass cover: 

 



Hackney East Marsh Site Notes – September 2013 

- 4 - 

• Broadleaved weeds – broadleaved weeds appeared to be restricted almost 
exclusively to fat hen and this appeared to be struggling under the mowing regime, 
although a large number of plants were noted, perhaps 20-30/m2 in places.  Grass 
clippings were noted to be bunching and collecting on the surface and this can present 
problems there distribution of clippings is an important element of the work that 
needs to be attended to. 

 

• Fertliser – the majority of the site does not require any further fertiliser however, 
some localised areas at the far end of the site show signs of paling somewhat, 
indicating a drop in nitrogen availability in all probability.  The area affected appears 
to be small, and mainly located on the riverside of the irrigation line on the final one 
to two pitches.  Hand fertiliser spreading may be sufficient in this instance if a tractor 
mounted device is not immediately available. However, I would suggest waiting a 
little or only using a product with around 5-6% Nitrogen applied at 35g/m2. 

 

• Mowing – in some areas the cutting decks appeared to be mowing unevenly (see 
photograph below) and later discussion with the maintenance staff revealed that a 
roller had become faulty during operation and was due to be mended that day. 
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Photograph showing the problem with uneven mowing due to roller failure. 

 

 

• Grass mowings – clumps of grass accumulating on the surface have the potential to 
spark disease outbreak and cause bald spots within the pitches as mowing 
commences.  In some areas of the site the growth seems a little excessive and perhaps 
is the first kick of fertiliser release following treatment and this has forced the growth 
somewhat.  The site will require light harrowing or brushing in order to breakup these 
mats of grass clippings.  The conditions have become less extreme recently and the 
release of fertiliser seems to be pushing on growth i.e. temperatures around the 20s, 
some rainfall, plus irrigation thereby suiting the grass to simply grow vigorously. 

In view of the rate at which grass is growing the daily cutting regime may need to be 
supplemented with growth retardant unless colder weather restricts growth soon.  We 
are slightly concerned that such vigorous growth could be prone to disease attack 
from Fusarium Patch (Microdochium nivale). 
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Photographs showing the excess clipping production occurring even though mowing 
is underway on a daily basis. 
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• Soil Pit 1 – examination of soil profile (west side of irrigation line).  The top 60mm 
or so comprised ameliorated sand and British Sugar topsoil material within which 
grass plant rooting was vigorous and widespread.  Beneath this was the (i.e. un-
ameliorated) British Sugar topsoil which grass roots were penetrating through well.  
Although roots inevitably tend to get broken during excavations on a small scale, the 
roots were extending at least 200mm (8") and probably deeper into the soil profile. 

Soil consolidation – the upper 60mm of ameliorated sand/soil was quite loose and 
lacking in much cohesiveness.  A good crumb structure was present which allowed 
easy grass plant rooting and development.  The underlying British Sugar topsoil 
appeared to be reasonably friable but had clearly limited structure caused during 
handling and construction.  Soil compaction relief works should be completed under 
suitable conditions when the sward has matured a little more. 

Photograph soil pit one: 

 

 

Soil Pit 2 – The second test pit was located on the eastern site of the site and revealed 
conditions similar to that observed in the first trial hole with approximately 60mm of 
sand/soil amelioration over the underlying silty loam British Sugar topsoil.  Rooting 
was noted to a depth of at least 200mm.  The underlying silty loam British Sugar 
topsoil appeared to be poorly structured and rooting within it was not as developed as 
the upper profile.  Compaction relief operations will therefore form an important part 
of up and coming operations.  The whole soil profile appeared to be moist and as the 
site moves into September, reducing irrigation inputs would probably be helpful in 
order to encourage deeper grass plant rooting and allowing the soil profile to gain 
more oxygen content. 
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Approximately halfway up the site on the eastern site an area of thinner grass cover 
was noted and this will require extra drill seeding or broadcast spreading with 
localised working-in of the seed.  The area is not terribly large, being perhaps 
10m x 5m in total but still worthy of further attention (see photograph) which 
indicated the position approximately 60m to the west of the silver coloured poplar 
trees as located halfway up the field between two oak trees. 

Photograph 2 - soil pit 2: soil structure is limited in the lower profile quite clearly. 

 

• Soil Pit 3 – Located approximately 100m from the car park on the east side.  The top 
150mm of the soil was quite east to penetrate with the spade but it quickly became 
hard underneath making further penetration more difficult.  Soil consolidation 
therefore confirmed to be an issue across the site at lower depths.  Rooting appeared 
to extend 150+mm in this particular sample but was limited in the lower part of the 
profile below 100mm. 

Photograph Soil pit 3:  
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• Soil Pit 4 over drain runs – this showed approximately 50mm of British Sugar 
topsoil ameliorated with sand over the top of a sandy rootzone profile.  Rooting 
penetrated to a depth of over 250mm (10").  The gravel layer was encountered at a 
depth of around 250-300mm. 

Grass on the drain lines appears to establishing satisfactorily, though inevitably tends 
to be a little weaker and hungrier than the surrounding turf on normal soil due to the 
high sand content and reduced nutrient and moisture availability in these situations.  
Nevertheless, the drain runs all appear to be fully established very well and will 
develop further with the onset of wetter autumn weather. 

Photograph Soil Pit 4: Drain run 
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• Soil questions – a small area of ground near the road/water tank was reported by the 
Agripower site operative on mowing to be struggling to establish seed.  To this end 
we would suggest testing the area to see if there is any contamination that may be 
preventing germination and establishment.  This appeared to relate to a single load of 
soil.  

• Stones – no stones were encountered during any of the soil profile examinations, 
however some clunks were heard from the mowing equipment during operations. 

• Overall Interpretation – I interpreted that the grass has established well and is 
having no difficulty rooting within the soil profile until it reaches the lower British 
Sugar topsoil where rooting is occurring but at lower density than the upper profile, 
almost certainly due to less structure and condition within the material.  Furthermore, 
the grass has had plenty of irrigation and this has reduced the need to search for water 
though we understand that some reduction in irrigation had taken place at the time of 
the visit which is desirable and to be recommended. 

There is the risk of a horizon developing between the ameliorated material and the 
underlying soil material unless this becomes conditioned and soil structure is 
improved in the underlying soil.  However, we are generally pleased to observe a 
good standard of establishment within the subterranean rooting system of the plants.  
Compaction relief works should commence soon. 

Some overseeding work is clearly still required and will be needed on the irrigation 
lines as previously documented. 





From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: RE: East Marsh - Site Visit 14th August 2013
Date: 14 August 2013 14:01:26

Hi 
 
Thank you for your time on  site today.  By way of progress update against the 23rd
June meeting actions:
 
1. LLDC to confirm to LBH what it is proposing to do to address concerns relating to
the 5-10m wide strip of ground running alongside the foot of the LO1 terrace/LO1
ramp and the edge of the first set of pitches, which is very stony, potentially poor
draining and likely to be heavily used.  This area is now seeded and is growing inline
with other newly seeded areas on the east marsh.  There are three manhole covers at
the edge of the playing area in front of the steps.  The middle of the three is raised by
approximately 25mm above ground level - a trip hazard.  LLDC to investigate lowering
this cover to ground level.

2. LLDC to confirm to LBH that they will be flat rolling the pitches after seeding
Underway

3.  LLDC to confirm to LBH what is being done to address the presence of debris in the
sub-soil as on recent visits in areas that have not been finished off the presence of
reinforcing rods and similar was noted Complete

4. LLDC to confirm to LBH what the conditions would be if LBH wanted to retain the
irrigation tank on site after transfer LLDC to advise.

5. LLDC to confirm to LBH the details of the proposed boundary fence and gate they
are planning to put in place to prevent unauthorised access to the site.  A knee rail
has been proposed and is acceptable to the Council if confirmation can be issued that
this is an 'industry standard' suitable deterrent to prevent unauthorised vehicular
access.

6. LBH to confirm to LLDC that the proposed car park edging proposal tabled at the
meeting is acceptable to them.  Accepted and viewed on site.  Outstanding elements
(reference 8th July email attached) are:  The gap between the edging and the paviors
is to be in filled with concrete rather than sand; Emergency access gate onto the
marsh; levelling and relaying paviors to the side of the entrance gate and access road
and gate works.

7. LLDC to confirm to LBH the proposed solution for protecting the East Marsh from
unauthorised vehicle access through the emergency / maintenance vehicle access point
See points 5 and 6 above.

8. LLDC to confirm to LBH the details of what process and ecological assessments took
place to inform the design and construction of the Mountain Bike Trail on East Marsh
Complete

9. LLDC to confirm to LBH that the bridge clearance problems with the Mountain Bike
Course have been resolved to the satisfaction of LVRPA LLDC to confirm.  This has the
potential to delay handover.  Confirmation at the earliest opportunity would be
appreciated.

10. LLDC to write to LBH setting out their suggestions for the mechanism and transfer
of East Marsh. Specifying how this relates to the achievement of the PQS.  All parties
agreed that the mechanism for handover should commence in August.  2 further sites
visits would be arranged (for late August and late September).  Depending on climatic







9. LLDC to confirm to LBH that the bridge clearance problems with the Mountain Bike Course have
been resolved to the satisfaction of LVRPA

10. LLDC to write to LBH setting out their suggestions for the mechanism and transfer of East
Marsh. Specifying how this relates to the achievement of the PQS.

I look forward to receiving the information from LLDC as soon as possible.

Regards

Hackney Council may exercise its right to intercept any communication, the only exception to this
would be confidential survey data, with any employee or agent of the Council using its telephony or
data networks. By using these networks you give your consent to Hackney Council monitoring and
recording your communication. If you have received this e-mail in error please delete it immediately
and contact the sender. For further information about Hackney Council policies please contact
Hackney Service Centre on: 020 8356 3000

This communication and the information it contains is intended for the addressee only. It may be
confidential, legally privileged and protected by law. Unauthorised use, copying or disclosure of any
of it may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error, please contact me
immediately by email or telephone and then delete the e-mail and its attachments from your
system. This email and any attachments have been scanned for viruses by Symantec and on leaving
the London Legacy Development Corporation they were virus free. No liability will be incurred for
direct, special or indirect or consequential damages arising from alteration of the contents of this
message by a third party or as a result of any virus contained within it or attached to it. The London
Legacy Development Corporation may monitor traffic data. For enquiries please call 020 3288 1800.
London Legacy Development Corporation, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, Olympic
Park, London, E20 1EJ.

www.londonlegacy.co.uk.
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From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: East Marsh
Date: 23 June 2013 06:30:02
Importance: High

Good to speak to you on Friday. Just to confirm the agreed actions from
the meeting:

1. LLDC to confirm to LBH what it is proposing to do to address concerns
relating to the 5-10m wide strip of ground running alongside the foot of
the LO1 terrace/LO1 ramp and the edge of the first set of pitches, which
is very stony, potentially poor draining and likely to be heavily used
(see attached)

2. LLDC to confirm to LBH that they will be flat rolling the pitches
after seeding

3.  LLDC to confirm to LBH what is being done to address the presence of
debris in the sub-soil as on recent visits in areas that have not been
finished off the presence of reinforcing rods and similar was noted

4. LLDC to confirm to LBH what the conditions would be if LBH wanted to
retain the irrigation tank on site after transfer

5. LLDC to confirm to LBH the details of the proposed boundary fence and
gate they are planning to put in place to prevent unauthorised access to
the site

6. LBH to confirm to LLDC that the proposed car park edging proposal
tabled at the meeting is acceptable to them

7. LLDC to confirm to LBH the proposed solution for protecting the East
Marsh from unauthorised vehicle access through the emergency /
maintenance vehicle access point

8. LLDC to confirm to LBH the details of what process and ecological
assessments took place to inform the design and construction of the
Mountain Bike Trail on East Marsh

9. LLDC to confirm to LBH that the bridge clearance problems with the
Mountain Bike Course have been resolved to the satisfaction of LVRPA

10. LLDC to write to LBH setting out their suggestions for the mechanism
and transfer of East Marsh. Specifying how this relates to the
achievement of the PQS.

I look forward to receiving the information from LLDC as soon as
possible.

Regards

Hackney Council may exercise its right to intercept any communication, the only exception to this
would be confidential survey data, with any employee or agent of the Council using its telephony or



data networks.
By using these networks you give your consent to Hackney Council monitoring and recording your
communication.
If you have received this e-mail in error please delete it immediately and contact the sender.
For further information about Hackney Council policies please contact Hackney Service Centre on:
020 8356 3000



From:
To:
Subject: East Marsh Car Park plan
Date: 03 April 2013 14:10:02
Attachments: East Marsh Car Park FRA April 2013.pdf

Dear Both
 
FYI:  Please find attached a PDF of the east marsh car park for our planning
application.
 
With regards
 

 

Hackney Council may exercise its right to intercept any communication, the only exception to this would be
confidential survey data, with any employee or agent of the Council using its telephony or data networks. 
By using these networks you give your consent to Hackney Council monitoring and recording your communication. 
If you have received this e-mail in error please delete it immediately and contact the sender. 
For further information about Hackney Council policies please contact Hackney Service Centre on: 020 8356 3000.
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1.0 INTRODUCTION 

Hemsley Orrell Partnership (HOP) has been instructed by the London Borough of Hackney 
to undertake a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) for the proposed car park development at 
the football grounds on the East Marsh in Hackney.  

The site lies approximately 100m to the northeast of the River Lee and with a culverted 
tributary running adjacent to the southern boundary of the site under the A16 Eastway.  

The north eastern part of the site lies just within the mapped extent of Flood Zone 2 as 
classified by the Environment Agency (EA).  This flood zone allocation gives rise to the 
requirement for a site specific Flood Risk Assessment to accompany a planning 
submission for the proposed car park. 

Details of the site and the proposals have been provided by the Client and form part of the 
London 2012 Olympic Park legacy programme, which is returning the East Marsh to its 
former use as sports pitches with associated car parking after the majority of the site was 
developed to accommodate temporary parking for the Olympic Games. 

This report has been carried out in accordance with guidance provided by the EA; the 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) for the Borough; and is in line with the guidance 
on Flood Risk and Development as provided in the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) and its associated Technical Guidance. 

Information in this report has been received from a number of external parties and HOP 
does not accept liability for the accuracy of this information.  Should there be a material 
change to the development proposals or a change in use then this report will need to be 
revised to reflect those proposals.  
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Extract of Table 2 (NPPF 2012) Flood risk vulnerability classification 
 

 
Extract of Table 3 (NPPF 2012) Flood risk vulnerability and Flood Zone ‘compatibility’ 

The primary flood risk to the site is fluvial and arises from the proximity of the River Lee, 
some 50m to the south and west.  Other sources of flooding are considered below.  

TIDAL FLOODING 

The SFRA notes that whilst the main source of flood risk facing Hackney is fluvial, there is 
a tidal influence on the River Lee watercourse. The tidal reach of the River Thames 
extends up the Lower Lee Valley to the Lee Bridge sluices. It is possible that the part of the 
River Lee within Hackney may be influenced by tidal processes. 

However, the Thames Barrier currently provides protection in excess of the 0.1% annual 
probability event. The presence of this defence, coupled with local defences means that 
any extreme tide level would have to be accompanied by a breach in flood defences to 
result in severe flooding. An allowance for the tidal influence on the River Lee has been 
included within the hydrodynamic modelling undertaken for the River Lee, as included in 
the Flood Zone modeling. 

GROUNDWATER FLOODING 

The SFRA for the district does not indicate that the Hackney Marsh site is historically 
susceptible to groundwater flooding.  The proximity of the site to the main river would 
indicate that the groundwater level is relatively shallow and therefore the risk of 
groundwater flooding would manifest itself in higher river levels leading to fluvial flood 
outlines as shown on the EA mapping.  

SURFACE WATER FLOODING 

The environs of the East Marsh have been free from development (excluding the historic 
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post-war fill operations) and surface water runoff from the area is assumed to drain 
naturally to the River Lee.  Again, the SFRA does not include any records of surface water 
flooding at or close to the site.  The construction of the car park with permeable methods 
should replicate the existing situation of surface water draining to land and therefore the 
risk of surface water flooding at the site is considered to be low. 

SEWER FLOODING 

The car park does not require any foul sewer connections and it is assumed that public 
and highways sewers are located within the Eastway. Should these become surcharged 
any overland flows that may be established should be limited to the extent of the highway 
and would flow to lower lying areas towards the River Lee to the southeast and southwest 
of the development site and therefore the risk of sewer flooding adversely affecting the 
proposed car park is considered to be low.  

RESERVOIR FLOODING 

Two reservoirs are located to the north of Hackney Marshes in Stoke Newington. These 
reservoirs are pumped storage reservoirs, which are classified as non-impounding. 
Although the EA online flood maps show that the East Marsh site is located within the 
maximum extent area of inundation from failure of these reservoirs, the SFRA states that 
the flood risk associated with these waterbodies is low. 

CLIMATE CHANGE 

Increased rainfall intensity, longer storm durations and rising sea levels are all attributed to 
global climate change.   The Technical Guidance to the NPPF shows that surface water 
drainage for commercial developments should include an allowance for an additional 30% 
of rainfall intensity to be taken in to account in designing surface water run-off. 

 

4.0 DETAILED DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS  

As can be seen on the General Arrangement plans shown in Appendix III the proposals 
are for a car park to remain at the site providing car parking for 60 cars including 4 
disabled bays and an additional 5 bays for minibus parking.   Access is off the Eastway via 
the existing temporary car park bellmouth and the car parking is served by a looping 
access road that utilises a one way system for traffic control.  

Details of the permeable construction have been provided by Hackney Borough Council 
and this method has been used for the construction of the temporary car park at the site, 
used for the Olympic Games. It is assumed that the design of the permeable car park 
construction meets the requirements of managing surface water runoff at the site through 
the use of infiltration Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). 

The proposed car park has been modelled using Micro Drainage software, based on the 
proposed specification supplied by the London Borough of Hackney, included in Appendix 
IV. These calculations show that for a 100 year return period with a 30% climate change 
allowance, based on an assumed soakage rate of 2x10-6m/s soakage rate, the proposed 
car park is not at risk of surface water flooding. The calculations also show the proposed 
runoff rate to be 2.8l/s. Soakage testing to BRE 365 is needed to confirm the soakage rate 
on site.  

Ground levels for the car park will remain as existing at around 6.3m AOD.  All the 
development area is external and there are no proposals for structures included within the 
car park proposals.  
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5.0 FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT MEASURES  

The proposed car park is outside of the extent of the extreme flood limits and is classified 
in the NPPF as appropriate development for all flood zones. The permeable construction 
of the surfacing will allow surface water run-off to be managed at source using infiltration 
sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) which is the preferred method of managing surface 
water run-off according to the SuDS manual and the management train hierarchy.  

The new car park does not interfere with existing overland flood routes and nor does it 
represent a reduction in available flood storage volumes.  It, therefore, is not considered to 
have an adverse effect on the existing site or to downstream properties or the wider area 
of Hackney Marsh.   

 

6.0 OFF-SITE IMPACT  

The proposed retention of an area of the existing car park and the reinstatement of sports 
pitches at the site greatly reduces the current hardsurfaced area. Furthermore, the 
proposed car park area does not represent an increase in the pre-Olympic hardsurfaced 
area provided by the original car park at the East Marsh. 

Surface water runoff is proposed to be managed through permeable paving which could be 
considered to be an improvement over the historic car park facility, in that the use of 
infiltration at source is more favourable in the SuDS hierarchy than site control with a direct 
discharge to watercourse. 

Runoff rates and volumes will be reduced through the proposed use of SuDS which 
represents betterment over the historic car park arrangement. It can be seen that off-site 
impacts of surface water runoff are minimal and the development proposals do not 
adversely affect neighbouring or downstream properties. 

7.0 RESIDUAL RISKS  

Residual risk stems from extreme rainfall events, infrastructure failure or a breach of the 
flood defences that protect the wider area of London from tidal flooding. As discussed in 
Section 3, overland flows from existing sewers that may be surcharged through blockages 
should be restricted to the highway which is at a lower level than the development site.  

Sewer flooding or surface water flooding flows would be conveyed to lower lying areas as 
the East Marsh site is raised above the immediate environs of the Eastway, and the main 
Hackney Marsh recreation grounds on the opposite bank of the River Lee. 

The Thames flood defences are located some 5km south of the East Marsh where the Lee 
joins the Thames. As such there would be considerable warning within the Borough if the 
capital’s flood defences were compromised. As the site is to be used for sports and 
recreation, any risk of forecasted extreme tidal flooding could be reasonably expected to 
be mitigated through closure of the site prior to potential inundation. 

 

8.0 CONCLUSIONS  

The proposed car park at the East Marsh lies partly within Flood Zones 1&2 and a site 
specific FRA is required to accompany a planning submission in accordance with the 
guidance of the NPPF. 
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Development proposals are for a car park to serve the sports pitches that are being 
reinstated at the site as part of the Olympic Legacy. Such development is considered to be 
water compatible in accordance with the NPPF guidance on development and flood risk 
without the need for the Sequential or Exception Tests to be applied. 

This report demonstrates that the primary risk of flooding to the site arises from fluvial 
sources due to the proximity of the River Lee. Other sources of potential flooding are 
considered to be of low risk. 

The proposed car park is to be constructed of permeable paving and replaces the historic 
car park facility with an equal area of development. This is considered to provide a 
reduction on flood risk to the site and downstream properties through the use of infiltration 
source control SuDS which replace the site control SuDS formerly employed at the site to 
manage surface water runoff. 

Considering the above points, this report demonstrates that the proposed East Marsh car 
park is appropriate development for the Flood Zone and further accords with the principles 
of the NPPF in that the proposals offer a betterment over the existing and former use of 
the site in that the risk to the site, neighbouring properties and downstream areas is 
reduced through the development of the new car park facility in the East Marsh. 




